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TORQUAY & DISTRICT HISTORICAL

SOCIETY Inc
NEWSLETTER — AUGUST 2025

NEWS

The ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Torquay & District
Historical Society Inc. will be held at 2pm on 28 August at 18

Price Street Torquay 3228.

TDHS are participating in the IGA rewards program in
July/August and Sept/Oct 2025. Please collect the tokens to
put in our chute at the door. This is a major fund-raising

event for the Society.

3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k %k 3k >k 5k >k 3k >k 5k %k 5k %k 5k >k %k >k %k 5k k >k k ok k

JAN JUC CREEK

The Jan Juc Creek is undergoing a change in a project called
‘daylighting’ and will return the highly disturbed urban waterway
to a more natural state. The aim is to recreate habitat, biodiversity
and amenity values, as well as delivering improved stormwater
quality to the catchment that drains to the Jan Juc beach. The
extent of the catchment is seen in this constructed map
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(Source Martin Hooper).

Jan Juc creek is naturally a transient waterway. As the township of
Jan Juc developed in the 1960's the alignment of the creek was
highly modified as utilities and drainage were moved
underground. In the 1970s, the Shire of Barrabool installed a “low
flow” pipe under the creek removing flows from the surface to
‘beautify’ the creek area by transforming it into a grassed reserve.
Storm water runoff was also conveyed through the underground
pipe and eventually out to the ocean. Friends of Jan Juc Creek
Reserve (FJJCR) presented Council with the idea of reinstating
sections of the creek to a more natural state by removing
underground drainage infrastructure and recreating the creek
channel (daylighting).

More information can be found at https://www.surfcoast.vic.gov.au/About-us/Works-and-projects/Torquay-and-Jan-
Juc-projects/Jan-Juc-creek-daylighting-project
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PAYNES GARAGE

Payne’s Garage and residence at 18 Bristol Street Torquay was built in 1933-34 by
Alfred Payne Jnr (1897-1957).

Alfred aka Fred was the son of Alfred Payne Snr (1867-1949) and Elizabeth
Dunbar (1868 1942) who had opened the first store in Torquay in Gilbert St in
1890 which also became the post office in 1897 where Alfred served as
postmaster until 1915. After Alfred sold the store and Post Office he bought land
between Geelong Road, Bristol Road, Zeally Bay Road and Fischer Street. On
early maps Fischer Street only went from Zeally Bay Road to Beach Road, until the
council acquired land and it was extended through to Bristol Road. The Payne
family moved to Geelong for Fred’s apprenticeship at the Gordon Institute where
he received certificates for motor mechanic, engineering and fitter and turner.
On returning to Torquay Alfred snr then built a modest home at 52 (as the
number was then) Bristol Road where they built a 40x20 foot shed in the back
yard for Fred to start his motor mechanic business c 1922. In between mechanic
work Fred helped his father in the building trade in Torquay.

Fred married Winifred Follett in 1926. Winfred was the daughter of John Follett
and Ada Chant and the granddaughter of James Follett and Anna Baensch who
established the Palace Hotel in 1888. Alfred Payne Snr gave the land to his son
Fred where the petrol service station is now and together, in 1933 they set about
building the garage. They poured the walls of the garage on the concrete floor,
by forming a large box lined with hessian on the bottom and when they were
dry Fred lifted them into position with his tractor. He later rendered the rough
cast sand and cement walls. He also built a concrete pit [so to stand in and work
underneath cars]. The garage started with one pump worked by hand pumping
the petrol from underground tanks. Fred built a house beside the garage and
later connected the two. Fred had the first telephone, no 1 (later when he was a
builder in 1945 it was No 201).

During the war years Fred supplied fuel for the Army stationed nearby, and he
made nuts and bolts on his lathes for the Air Force. Daughter Judith packed them
into boxes. Winifred worked the hand petrol pump, and checked oil, water and
tyres for the customers.

Fred also had a contract for Torquay’s street lighting, climbing a ladder to put in
globes and porcelain fuses. After 23 years in the motor mechanic/petrol trade he
sold the service station to Bob Wilson which then had 5 petrol pumps. Fred then
went into the building trade and became a Master Builder. Many homes he built
still stand. He built the original golf club house situated on the east side of Spring
Creek; all a testament to his workmanship.

Fred was a member of the Foreshore Committee and Torquay Progress
Association [TIA] and operated the projector for the picture shows at the TIA
Hall. Family life, bowls, cards and fishing were his pleasures.

Thank you to Judith Duffield (nee Payne) for recounting the story of her Father
Fred Payne.

Note:

As reported in the Surf Coast Heritage Study of 2009 the garage has significance for the
very early and unusual precast concrete panel wall construction attached to projecting
narrow piers and finished in roughcast stucco. Locally, it is an unusual form of wall
construction. For this reason, it is stated to be architecturally significant at a STATE
level.
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TORQUAY FOOTBALL CLUB - EARLY HISTORY

Torquay Football Club was said to be formed after World War | and the
colours of the club were blue and white. However, newspaper articles from
the Geelong Advertiser report matches from 1904 against Freshwater Creek,
Germantown, Connewarre and Jan Juc. In 1905 the newspaper reports a
match played at Torquay on Saturday, between the Germantown and
Torquay Clubs resulted after a very exciting game in a win for the latter by 1
point. Scores: Torquay 4 goals 3 behinds (27 points) Germantown 3 goals 8
behinds (26 points). The best players for Torquay were Hunter, Austin,
Baensch and Brown and for Germantown Feehan, Palmer, Walker and
Rossack. H. Stewart umpired satisfactorily. In 1911 the Geelong and District
Football Association announced trophies for the rural leagues to encourage
and improve football in the surrounding country districts.

After the war Modewarre had joined the competition. In 1920 the
newspaper reports the Torquay Football club held a grand fancy dress
carnival on the Torquay Public Reserve on Saturday afternoon, and in the
public hall in the evening to raise money for the Geelong Kitchener Memorial
Hospital. During the evening P. Tuck captain of the Torquay Football Club,
presented the gold medals which were kindly donated by B. Drayton for the
best improved player. A. Duffield (Torquay) and Con Grossman (Jan Juc)
were the winners. By 1922 Moriac were in the competition.

The club was disbanded during World War Il and reformed in 1952 from
where most of its current history originates. In 1952, George McCartney
founded a junior Torquay FC team, while a senior squad was reformed in
1953. The first games were played on the Laurie Dean oval at the camping
ground. The first competition the club played in was the Jarman Cup,
coached by Joel Witherton. As second-hand jumpers were donated by the

Richmond Football Club, the club became known as the Tigers. The club won
its first premiership in 1960. Torquay then played in the Polwarth Football
League, from 1964 to 1970.

Players L-R
Back: C Grossman, E Robinson, E McPhee, W Helps. A Duffield, | Crow, E Duffield
Centre: V Rosser, McLean, R Mockridge, P Baensch (Capt), A Wilson, R Voss, R Smith
Front: A Hunter, F Baensch, Duffield, F. Payne




